
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 21 October 2016 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Friday, 28 October 2016 at 2.30 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, Mohammad Ayub, Loraine Cox, Kath Pratt and Glen Harrison 
 
Cooptees: Dave Parkins 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
That the minutes of the last meeting held on 7th September 2016 be submitted for 
approval. 
 
Recommended  - That the Minutes be received and approved as a  
   correct record. 
 

4.   Primary Care Model Consultation  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Representatives from the East Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group will report on 
the outcome of the Primary Care Model consultation. 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 7th September, 2016 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Mohammad Ayub, 
Loraine Cox and Glen Harrison 
 
Co-optee - Dave Parkins 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Miles Parkinson 

  

Apologies: Kath Pratt 
 

 
72 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Pratt. 
 

73 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
Councillor Glen Harrison declared an interest in item 6 – Lancashire County Council 
Property Strategy Review, due to him being a Member of Oswaldtwistle Lamp who had 
submitted an application to Lancashire County Council for transfer of a community asset.  
During discussion of the item Councillor Harrison left the room. 
 

74 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
To receive the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday, 28th June 2016 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Councillor B. Parkinson reported that Councillor Nedwell has been omitted from the last 
minutes and requested that she be recorded as in attendance at the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record subject to the amendment as stated above. 
 

75 Responses of Cabinet to reports of Overview and Scrutiny - Work Programmes 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to provide the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee with feedback from Cabinet on the 2016/17 work programme.  He reported that 
Cabinet had requested that a further item, Review of Combined Authorities, was added to 
the work programme.   
 
Councillor Miles Parkinson referred to the proposed creation of a combined authority and 
the need for the Council to investigate the impact on the borough to ensure that a decision 
to join would have the best outcome for the borough.     
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Resolved (1) That the Committee noted the feedback provided by 
Cabinet on the draft 2016/17 Overview & Scrutiny Work 
Programmes;  

 (2) That the Communities and Wellbeing Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee approved the 2016/17 work 
programme; and 

 (3) That an item ‘Review of Combined Authorities’ be added 
to the work programme to be reviewed at a joint meeting 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
76 Appointment of Co-optees 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform the Committee of 
applications that had been received for a Co-opted Member on to the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  He informed the meeting that the nomination 
for co-optee had been withdrawn. 

Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 

77 Lancashire County Council Property Strategy Review 
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform the Committee of Lancashire 
County Council’s Property Strategy which included a review of the buildings it uses to run 
front line services and how this affects Hyndburn.   He summarised details of the review on 
Council-owned properties being carried out by Lancashire County Council across the 
borough.  He explained that this included the closure of a number of public buildings and 
that Lancashire County Council had invited local organisations to submit business cases for 
the transfer of assets to their organisations.  He pointed out that several organisations had 
been invited to this meeting to give details of their business cases and their intentions for 
providing for the community.   
 
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Miles Parkinson expressed delight with the business 
cases that the Community groups had submitted to Lancashire County Council.  He 
reported on the process that the cases would have to go through for approval by the County 
and that he had arranged to meet with the Director responsible for analysing the cases to 
discuss a number of issues including those raised at this meeting.   
 
Representatives from Hyndburn Leisure, Mercer House 1842 and Oswaldtwistle Lamp 
presented the Committee with summaries of their applications submitted to Lancashire 
County Council for consideration.   
 
Councillor Harrison left the room during the presentation and discussion of the application 
submitted by Oswaldtwistle Lamp. 
 
The Leader of the Council reported that the timescale in which applicants had to submit 
their applications had been problematic.  It had been pointed out by Gayle Knight 
(Oswaldtwistle Lamp) that the buildings were due to close in September 2016 which did not 
allow any time for consideration or implementation of successful applications and which 
could ultimately prevent the project from happening.  She had also referred to the large 
number of public buildings the Council could have to transfer should applications be 
successful.  The Leader of the Council indicated that he would raise this issue during the 
meeting scheduled with the Director from Lancashire County Council.   

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Resolved (1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Officer forwards a letter 
to Lancashire County Council setting out the 
Committee’s recommendations, as follows: 

 

 That it be noted that Hyndburn Borough Council’s 
Community and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s preference would be to keep all three 
libraries in Hyndburn proposed for closure, open; 

 

 That should this not be possible, the Committee would 

urge Lancashire County Council to delay the planned 

closure of the libraries (Oswaldtwistle, Rishton and 

Clayton-Le-Moors) recommended for 30th September 

2016 until the business cases submitted by local 

organisations are reviewed and the potential transfer of 

these assets finalised.  Closure of these buildings prior 

to transfer does not make sense and could lead to empty 

buildings being damaged or falling into a state of 

disrepair; 

 

 That the committee supports the business case put 

forward by the Oswaldtwistle Lamp for the management 

and  running of a Community Library / book lending 

facility in Oswaldtwistle.  

 

 The Committee also supports some type of community 

library in Clayton Le Moors in either the Civic Hall 

building or the Arthur Wilson Centre. 

 

 The Committee recommends Lancashire County Council 

continues dialogue with interested parties around the 

location of Rishton Library. That the Committee’s 

preference in Rishton is to co-locate the Children’s 

Centre from the Copperhouse building to the current 

library building in order to keep services in the town 

centre. 

 The Committee also supports the business case put 

forward by Hyndburn Leisure Trust for the Great 

Harwood Young People’s Centre to expand the Health & 

Wellbeing and leisure offer in Great Harwood. 

 The Committee would like to support the expression of 

interest put forward by Clayton Boxing Club for taking 

over the running (transfer) of the Young People’s Centre 

in Clayton Le Moors on Moors Street with support from 

the Mayoral charity fund. 

 The Committee urges Lancashire County Council to 

ensure the transfer of any asset to be as smooth and 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

efficient as possible and do not wish to see the area left 

with neglected buildings 

                     (2)  That the report be noted. 

 
78 Calderstones NHS Trust / Transforming Care 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer reported on the response from Calderstones NHS Trust 
in respect of the Committee’s recommendations regarding the changes being made to the 
care of patients at Calderstones Hospital.   He reported that a further consultation would be 
taking place and that they would be happy for the Council to respond to that but pointed out 
that there was no date for the next consultation, as yet. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 6



 

 1 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

PRIMARY CARE COMMITTEE 
 

19 September 2016 
 

New model of care consultation report 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. A comprehensive twelve week consultation was undertaken between April and 
July 2016 on a proposed new model of primary care in East Lancashire. 

 
1.2. The consultation achieved extensive publicity and was widely promoted in the 

area.  
 
1.3. An online survey was supported with a distribution of 13,000 paper questionnaires 

and pre-paid envelopes to the 58 GP practices and patient and public interest 
groups. 

 
1.4. The promotion of the survey was backed up with press and radio coverage, 

advertising, and the extensive use of social media. 
 
1.5. In addition, a programme of presentations, meetings and face to face engagement 

was undertaken to enable patients, members of the public and other stakeholders 
to consider the proposals and respond to the consultation.  

 
1.6. We engaged with patients at 16 drop-in face to face meetings. We were privileged 

to be able to present our proposals and hear views at over 30 different meetings.  
We engaged in online discussions on Facebook and Twitter, encouraging 
comment whilst hopefully maintaining a neutral yet positive stance.  

 
1.7. We were delighted to receive 2,129 responses to the consultation, and within 

these responses, many detailed comments which we have given consideration to.  
 
1.8. We are truly grateful for the level of engagement and the responses people have 

given.  This report sets out our reflections regarding the feedback and proposes 
how we will consider further the responses moving forward.  

 
2. Approach  

 
2.1. Prior to more formal engagement with patients and the public, we undertook a 

period of pre-consultation engagement in March 2016, in Hyndburn, and we 
briefed our representative Patient Participation Group (PPG) network chairs at a 
meeting of the Patient Partners Board. In Hyndburn we gave presentations to the 
Hyndburn Wellbeing and Communities Committee, and the Health Scrutiny 
Committee. We also gave a presentation and listened to the views of the patient 
participation group for the GP service at Accrington Victoria Community Hospital.  
This service is run by a local provider – East Lancashire Medical Services (ELMS).  
In addition, representatives from ELMS and the ELMS patient participation group 
attended this meeting.   

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



 

 2 

2.2. Following the pre-engagement activities described above, we launched the formal 
consultation online, through the media, social media and using the well-established 
PPG network.  In addition we contacted all known patient and public groups with 
the information, and an offer to provide a presentation to them. 

 
2.3. The consultation ran for a 12 week period between April and July 2016. 
 
2.4. Through public relations activity, and the support of all media in the area, we 

achieved editorial coverage (i.e. news or feature articles) in every newspaper and 
local magazine.  The combined readership, based on the circulation profiles of the 
papers and magazines meant that we reached approximately 165,000 residents.  
Notably, we achieved broadly balanced coverage on the front pages of the Burnley 
Express, Nelson Leader, Colne Times and Barnoldswick and Earby Times.  The 
other newspapers in the area (Lancashire Telegraph, Clitheroe Advertiser, 
Rossendale Free Press, and Accrington Observer) all featured the proposals 
prominently and were broadly balanced in their coverage.  The Accrington 
Observer feature adverse comments about the proposals for Hyndburn from local 
residents and the MP. In essence these were focused on the loss of the Walk in 
Centre, and the proposal for a telephone/appointment based health hub in 
Hyndburn.  

 
2.5. All three radio stations in the area featured the consultation.  The coverage was 

balanced with Radio Lancashire featuring the consultation in its “breakfast show”. 
The estimated audience figures for the three radio stations were 315,000 listeners.  
It is important to note that both Radio Lancashire and the Bee have an audience 
profile that includes central Lancashire.  

 
2.6. Through social media we were able to reach reached over 16,000 Facebook 

followers (with EL postcodes), and 3, 935 Twitter followers.  We achieved 
significant reach on Twitter as a number of our followers have a considerable 
following.  We used social media to clarify queries and encourage completion of 
the survey.  

 
2.7. While we were keen to encourage online completion of consultation survey, during 

our planning phase we considered that it was important to reach those patients 
who either were not online, or perhaps were averse to going online.  In addition, 
during our considerations we were also concerned to ensure that people with 
literacy and learning difficulties and people with sensory impairments could have 
the opportunity to respond to the consultation.  We arranged for the printing and 
distribution of 13,000 Paper Questionnaires distributed to 58 GP practices (200 
questionnaires each), along with prepaid envelopes, and explanatory posters and 
information sheets.  This information gave people a telephone hotline, email and 
postal address if they had any queries or if they required the consultation materials 
in any particular format for them to complete. A further batch of consultation 
materials was available for patient groups and interested parties.  In our meetings 
with GP practice patient participation groups (PPGs), there was considerable 
interest in ensuring that the survey questionnaires were completed either online or 
using the paper questionnaires, and a number of PPGs helped us with the 
promotion of the consultation.  We extend our thanks to those in each area of East 
Lancashire who did this through “census” days or simply encouraging patients to 
participate.   

 
2.8. In addition to achieving coverage in all of the local newspapers, we bought 

advertising space in every newspaper. This included a copy of the questionnaire, 
along with additional supporting information.  

 

Page 8



 

 3 

2.9. We were also successful in achieving further editorial coverage in the majority of 
the media through a press release encouraging responses, and reminding people 
of the closing date.  

 
2.10. Throughout the consultation period we gave presentations to various health groups 

in the area, including GP, Practice Nurse, Practice Manager, Patient Participation 
Groups, locality groups and PPG networks.  

 
2.11. We gave presentations to over 30 different groups including presentations to the 

statutory patient body (Healthwatch), Lancashire County Council OSC, Local 
Authority Scrutiny Committees (Hyndburn, Rossendale, Burnley, Ribble Valley, 
Pendle) and health and wellbeing groups, and were invited to talk to Rossendale 
older peoples forums. 

 
2.12. A small team of individuals undertook face to face drop-ins in health centres in 

each area. This amounted to 16 drop-in sessions and gave us a superb 
opportunity to promote the consultation and engage with people to hear their 
views.  

 
2.13. We engaged NHS Midlands and Lancashire CSU to provide us with 4 electronic 

online podiums (essentially mounted laptops with wifi capability) to enable patients 
in waiting rooms and health centres to contribute to the survey if they wished.   

 
2.14. We are grateful to our GP members and our partners for promoting the 

consultation and encouraging people to tell us their views.    
 
2.15. Finally, we received a number of ad-hoc, direct comments from patients and the 

public via phone, email, online and face to face. 
 
3. Quantitative Findings 

 
3.1. The consultation analysis was commissioned from In:fusion.  The CCG is a 

member of In:fusion, along with local authorities in Lancashire. Originally based in 
Pendle, the In:fusion research service is based in Blackpool but provides research 
services to local authorities across the Lancashire area, but primarily for the 
boroughs of East Lancashire.  NHS East Lancashire was a founding member of 
the service and commissions independent research from it. Most recently In:fusion 
supported the consultation on the proposed combined authority for Lancashire.  
The report of the consultation findings is attached. 

 
3.2. There is strong agreement with all of the principles underpinning the proposed new 

model for primary care. Particularly strong levels of agreement are for GP services 
that are local and provide consistent information. 

 
3.3. Seven in ten people (70%) agree with the proposed introduction of the health 

hubs, particularly as an alternative to the Walk in Centre in Accrington.  
 
3.4. People in Burnley and Rossendale were the most likely to agree with the 

introduction of health hubs, whilst the highest level of disagreement was from 
Hyndburn residents.  The loss of the Walk in Centre and its replacement was the 
strongest determinant for this level of disagreement.  

 
3.5. Nearly three in four (75%) people agree with the overall model of primary care, 

although Hyndburn residents were less likely to agree than people from other 
areas in East Lancashire. 

 
3.6. Strong Summary of RFI process to be detailed in the Market Engagement Report 

which will be shared internally once finalised. 

Page 9



 

 4 

 
4. Qualitative Findings 

 
4.1. In total, 993 comments were received through the consultation survey.  These 

have been analysed to determine the key themes.    
 

4.2. For those who agree with the proposal, the key themes are : 

 Better access to GP services  

 Trust in GPs and decision makers  

 Extended opening hours well received particularly for those who work 
 

4.3. For those who disagree with the proposal, the key themes are: 

 Hyndburn’s Walk in Centre is valued and well used 

 A fear that closing the Walk in Centre will lead to the closure of Accrington 
Victoria Hospital 

 The importance of same day access, and walk in options  

 Concern regarding how the appointment system, and telephone access will 
work in practice 

 Concern regarding how the service will cope and the knock on effect for A&E  

 Some Ribble Valley respondents queried why no hub was proposed for 
Ribblesdale 

 
4.4. A number of themes emerged from the analysis that cut across the responses, 

regardless whether the response was supportive or not.  These themes merit 
consideration and include:  

 Concern about the lack of details, including staffing, capacity, and location of 
the hubs 

 Concern about choosing the right location and being sensitive to the 
demands, resources and issues in each area  

 The importance of locating the hubs adjacent to public transport networks  

 Ensuring that the hubs are easily accessible for everyone in the locality 

 Considering various different groups who may use the hubs (disabled, 
elderly, children, people with sensory impairments) 

 Queries about the necessity of extensive weekend availability and the impact 
on GPs and their staff  

 Concern about support services for the hubs and the mechanics of ensuring 
these  

 Concern about the impact on individual GP surgeries  
 
5. Cross reference with feedback from meetings and face to face contacts 
 

5.1. In the main, where we attended meetings and gave presentations, we listened to 
the views and comments that people made.  For the most part, we encouraged 
people to record their views in the online survey or using the paper questionnaire. 
However for each meeting we attended, we ensured that it was either minuted, or 
we kept notes.    We cross checked the comments and themes from such 
engagements against the themes derived from the survey.  The key themes that 
we identified from the qualitative data match with the comments and feedback that 
we received during meetings and through face to face engagement.  
 

5.2. It is notable that in a small number of meetings, participants articulated a 
considerable amount of cynicism about the consultation being “a done deal”, and 
that the CCG would not listen to the views that people had contributed.  It is, 
therefore essential that the views articulated and analysed from the consultation 
are given due consideration and that our decisions are communicated clearly and 
well to respondents of the survey, and residents in East Lancashire. 
 

Page 10



 

 5 

5.3. Equally notable from the meetings and engagement was the feedback that people 
thought we were already offering extended GP access, recognition that other 
areas were already doing this (Blackburn was cited along with other areas in 
Lancashire), and if we weren’t – we should simply “just get on with it”.  The broad 
sentiment was that extending GP access is welcome, but with the caveat that the 
funding is available to do this, the capacity (i.e. GPs and staff) is available and that 
a programme of education and communication supports the implementation.  

 
6. The Hyndburn Walk in Centre Petition  

 
6.1. County Councillor Claire Pritchard launched a petition to save the walk in centre in 

Hyndburn, following the publicity concerning the consultation. The petition has 
been available online since the inception of the consultation to the time of writing 
(4 months). It has achieved 4,821 supporters. The CCG has not formally received 
the petition.  We have made contact with County Councillor Pritchard’s office to 
request formal receipt and we are awaiting this. The petition is available here: 
https://www.change.org/p/east-lancashire-clinical-commissioning-group-retain-the-
g-p-walk-in-centre-at-accrington-victoria-hospital  
 

6.2. The CCG has a protocol for handling petitions, and once received, the CCG will 
need to consider it.  In the absence of formal receipt, the CCG may wish to give 
the petition due consideration as part of this, recognising the weight of opinion in 
favour of retaining the walk in centre. 

 

7. Conclusion  
 

7.1. There is significant support for the proposed new model of primary care access, 
and in particular for the extended access hubs.  
 

7.2. In Hyndburn there is significant opposition to the loss of the walk in centre and the 
creation of the health hub. This is evident in the aforementioned petition.  A 
particular driver for this is that residents in Hyndburn report notable difficulties in 
accessing their GP by phone to obtain appointments, and are open that because 
of the difficulties of obtaining appointments at their GP, they use the walk in centre. 
It is clear from the comments that with the closure of the walk in centre, if GP 
access is not improved, and there is no walk in capacity built into the model for 
Hyndburn, there will be considerable impact on emergency and urgent care as 
patients will simply go to A&E or the urgent care centres. For the Hyndburn 
locality, there is a dual challenge of improving GP telephone access and 
appointments, and evaluating whether walk in capability can be established within 
the model. Responding to these two challenges may well mitigate and go some 
way to addressing the concern felt about the loss of the Walk in Centre.   The 
Hyndburn locality may wish to hold some engagement events with patient and 
residents to co-produce a model that is clinically and financially sustainable, yet 
finds some accommodation for the demand that has been articulated, and is 
evident.  
 

7.3. The implementation of the new model in each area,  will need to start with 
consideration of the detailed findings for each locality and  for each locality to 
respond to any concerns about implementation, and sustainability (capacity, 
funding, access, location, walk in options etc.). To support this, localised reports 
have been produced for each locality group to consider and use to develop the 
model locally.  

 
8. Recommendations 

 
8.1. Members of the Primary Care Committee are asked: 

Page 11

https://www.change.org/p/east-lancashire-clinical-commissioning-group-retain-the-g-p-walk-in-centre-at-accrington-victoria-hospital
https://www.change.org/p/east-lancashire-clinical-commissioning-group-retain-the-g-p-walk-in-centre-at-accrington-victoria-hospital


 

 6 

 
8.1.1. To note the findings from the new models of care consultation  
 
8.1.2. Support the findings and following this mandate each locality to progress 

their models using the insight from the consultation and working with 
patients to achieve this. 

 
8.1.3. Record their thanks to the respondents of the surveys and everyone who 

gave their views through the consultation, and agreeing for 
communication to be issued highlighting their thanks and the next steps. 

 
 
David Rogers 
Head of Communication and Engagement 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	4. Primary Care Model Consultation

